Public Document Pack

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission
Agenda

Date: Thursday, 26 September 2019
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: City Hall Meeting Spaces - First Floor - 1P 09 - City Hall, College
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Paula O'Rourke (Chair), Fabian Breckels (Vice-Chair), Tom Brook,
Mark Bradshaw, Hibaq Jama, Carole Johnson, Jon Wellington, Martin Fodor,
Kevin Quartley, Mark Weston, Mark Wright and Harriet Bradley

Issued by: Johanna Holmes, Scrutiny Advisor
City Hall, PO Box 3167, Bristol, BS3 9FS
Tel: 0117 90 36898
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Wednesday, 18 September 2019

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
(Pages 4 - 5)

2.

Apologies for Absence and Substitutions

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any declarations of interest from the Councillors. They are asked to
indicate the relevant agenda item, the nature of the interest and in particular
whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which is not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.

5.

(Pages 6 - 14)

Action Tracker
(Pages 15 - 16)

6.

Chair's Business

To note any announcements from the Chair

7.

Public Forum

Up to 30 minutes is allowed for this item
Any member of the public or Councillor may participate in Public Forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet at
the back of this agenda. Public Forum items should be emailed to
democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk and please note that the following deadlines
will apply in relation to this meeting:Questions - Written questions must be received 3 clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received in
this office at the latest by 5 pm on Friday 20th September 2019
Petitions and Statements - Petitions and statements must be received on the
working day prior to the meeting. For this meeting this means that your

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Agenda

submission must be received in this office at the latest by 12.00 noon on
Wednesday 25th September 2019.

8.

Scrutiny Work Programme

To note the work programme.

9.

(Pages 17 - 21)

Bristol Harbour Review
(Pages 22 - 26)

10. Performance Report (Quarter 1)
(Pages 27 - 35)
11. Local Plan Consultation March - May 2019 Summary
(Pages 36 - 39)
12. Update on the Mayors Climate Emergency Action Plan
This paper is to follow.

13. Property Assets Strategy
This paper is to follow.

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government
(Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
You can also inspect papers at the City Hall Reception, College Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
Other formats and languages and assistance
For those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.
Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee and be available in the meeting
room one hour before the meeting. Please submit it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk or
Democratic Services Section, Brunel House St Georges Road Bristol BS1 5UY. The following
requirements apply:
•
•

The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than three clear working days before the meeting.

Please see www.bristol.gov.uk and the ‘How to Have Your Say’ pdf for the parameters of each
individual Committee and what will happen to your submission.
Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, only the first sheet will be copied and made available at the
meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine articles
that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the committee. This information will
also be made available at the meeting to which it relates and placed in the official minute book as a
public record (available from Democratic Services).

Page 4

www.bristol.gov.uk

We will try to remove personal information such as contact details. However, because of time
constraints we cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement
contains information that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Public Forum statements
will not be posted on the council’s website. Other committee papers may be placed on the council’s
website and information in them may be searchable on the internet.
Process during the meeting:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items) and the footage will be available for two years. If you
ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have
given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means
that persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be
disruptive). Members of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others
attending and that is not within the council’s control.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission
23 July 2019 at 6.00 pm

Members Present:Councillors: Paula O'Rourke (Chair), Fabian Breckels (Vice-Chair), Tom Brook, Mark Bradshaw,
Jon Wellington, Martin Fodor, Mark Wright and Claire Hiscott
Officers in Attendance:Nuala Gallagher (Director, City Growth, Investment & Infrastructure), Adam Crowther (Head of Strategic
City Transport), Ed Plowden, Johanna Holmes (Policy Advisor - Scrutiny) and Patsy Mellor (Director –
Management of Place), Kate Cole (Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor), Jessica Macdonald
(Policy & Public Affairs Officer).

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information
The Scrutiny Advisor opened the meeting. A safety announcement in relation to the fire/emergency
evacuation procedure was made.
2. Annual Business Report
The Scrutiny Advisor opened the Annual General Meeting and explained that the Commission Members were
required to elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the Commission for the municipal year.
Chair of the Commission – Cllr O’Rourke
 Nominated by – Cllr Brook
 Seconded by – Cllr Fodor
Vice Chair of the Commission – Cllr Breckels
 Nominated by – Cllr Wellington
 Seconded – Cllr Brook
At this point the newly elected Chair thanked the other Members and asked everyone in the room to introduce
themselves.

Page 6

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

3. Apologies for Absence and Substitutions
Apologies were received from the following Councillors:
 Councillor Weston. Councillor Claire Hiscott was in attendance as a substitute.
 Councillor Quarterly
 Councillor Wright. Councillor Negus was in attendance as a substitute
4. Declarations of Interest
There were none.
5. Minutes of Previous Meeting and Action Tracker
Minutes of the 21st February 2019 Commission Meeting.
Members made the following comment:
Performance Report - Quarter 3
Members requested more information about the numbers and progress of affordable homes in the pipeline. The
Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor said that she would look into this after the meeting. It was agreed
that any further information would be emailed to the Members.

The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as true record.
Members noted the information in the Action Tracker.
6. Chair's Business
The Chair said that during the scrutiny work programme setting workshop in June those present had tried to theme
the Commission’s meetings where possible. The Chair hoped that the introductions to items from officers would
be short, interactive and not feel like briefings. The Chair added that she was confident that the work of the
Commission would be good this year.

7. Public Forum
Public Forum Statement 1:
It was highlighted that many of the bus stops at Temple Meads had been moved during the previous weekend
which was much earlier than had previously been planned. However, it was reported that pedestrians were still
having to use temporary paths with very little signage being provided to help people understand where they should
be going. This it was said needed to be corrected as soon as possible, ideally within the next 48 hours because
there are thousands of passengers coming into Bristol every day that need to know where to catch buses from
when they exit the train station. It was said that the current information from network rail informing people where
to go was inaccurate showing bus stops that didn’t exist anymore. Transport Officers said that they were already
looking into this situation.

Page 7

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

8. Work Programme
Members were given the opportunity to comment on the commissions annual work programme which had been
set at a workshop in June of this year.
A Member asked if there was any scope to add items if necessary. The Chair replied the work programme had been
left intentionally light in places to allow items to be added items if necessary. It was agreed that the Members
would contact the Chair and Scrutiny Advisor if they were of the view that something should be added to the work
programme.
A Member asked about why the Local Plan hadn’t been included on the work programme. It was explained that it
had been discussed with officers at the scrutiny work programme setting work shop and explained that there was a
specific ‘Local Plan - Members Working Group’. Officers were surprised that Members had requested it was also
brought to scrutiny. A Member explained that as the public consultation was now complete that he thought it
would be a useful exercise for scrutiny to understand and consider the results from it. The Chair agreed. ACTION:
The Local Plan to be added to the scrutiny work programme for September.

9. Performance Report (2018/19 Quarter 4)
The Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor introduced the report to Members and briefly elaborated on the
significant issues in the report. It was confirmed that the report was the 2018/19 year-end summary.
Some of the measures presented in the report were annual measures (14) and others are taken from the Quality of
Life survey (QoL) (13).
Members made the following comments;
 There were in their view a ‘worrying number’ of downward trends. However it was acknowledged there
were difficulties involved in fixing them as some were due to wider impacts highlighted in the report itself,
such as the impact of welfare benefits reform on housing figures.


It was suggested that some of the commentary in the report ‘wasn’t particularly helpful’ because it
explained why there were problems but Members didn’t think it give enough information about what was
being done about them.



The Chair suggested that the reduction in ‘Increase the percentage of people who feel they can influence
local decisions’ (BCP315 & from QoL) was very likely to be a consequence of the Neighbourhood
Partnerships (NPs) not existing anymore. Other members agreed with this point. The Director –
Management of Place said that indicator was still being monitored by the Communities Scrutiny
Commission and yes it was likely a result of the NPs stopping but there are now new teams and a
redesigned service.
The Performance Officer said that she had recently worked on a Citizen’s Panel which had proven to be
very popular with those involved. She said that it was being looked at how they can be better publicised in
future and recruit to as they are a positive way for people to engage in local matters.

Page 8

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk



Members also noted the that performance indicator (BCP540): Reduce percentage of people who feel that
street litter is a problem in their neighbourhood (QoL) was displaying as worse compared to same period in
the previous year and much higher than the 2018/2019 target. One Member said that about a quarter to a
fifth of his local case work was residents complaining about litter and mess on the streets. He said it hadn’t
previously ever been such a problem and he wasn’t really sure what was going on. It was said that the
Mayor had said the situation would improve by means of the Clean Streets Campaign. It was thought that
the officers running the programme were very effective and so he was not sure why it appeared to be
failing especially given the large amount of funding that had been placed into it. In his view it was fair to
say that the project had been a failure so far.
Officers responded that regardless of all the resources that had been channelled into this issue, the figures
for litter and graffiti were still very high and that the council were “losing the fight against tagging and
graffiti.” It was said that four teams of targeted officers with a neighbourhood approach would start in
September working across all areas of the city. Their aim was to reduce the percentage of residents who
felt that street litter was a problem. However, the new resources were still unlikely to be enough to
completely eliminate the issues. Officers also said that for first time all the teams responsible for waste
and street scene were to be brought under the same directorate which would allow an improved and
combined approach from now on.
A senior officer added that the underperforming results of the QoL Survey would lead to action being taken
to address them and that they were already speaking to Service Managers about them.

10.Public Transport
The Service Manager - Sustainable Transport and Group Manager for Highways and Traffic introduced themselves
and explained that they would present and then and take questions one section at a time if that was acceptable to
members, which it was.
Bus Strategy
Transport Officers introduced the Bus Strategy section via some presentation slides. Some of the key points were
as follows
 West of England (WoE) bus use has continued to increase. Figures show that Bristol is bucking the national
trend on patronage and doing quite well compared to other local authorities. Student use of buses has
risen too.
 Officers said that it’s difficult to find funding for public transport compared to funding for motoring.
 First Bus currently severs services in the city centre to help improve reliability i.e. so that congestion
doesn’t continually affect the outer areas as much.
 A review of the network is currently taking place and being carried out by ARUP. They have already
reported that the way things are currently done in Bristol isn’t as efficient as it could be and patronage can
be increased further.
 It wouldn’t be until next year when the strategy was ready to be consulted upon.
Questions and comments from Members:
 It was said that there are still far too many old and polluting buses being used in some parts of the city.
 Members thought that Old Market Bus Interchange worked well as an interchange. But it was suggested
that they are future proofed to enable the use of future technology.

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk










Members agreed that there were still gaps in the current route map; for example East Bristol still has no
direct route to Temple Meads Station.
Members considered it positive that residents will be consulted about bus routes but asked whether they
shouldn’t also be asked about additional plans or ideas for the future? Officers said they need to be careful
what they ask for views on because it needs to be considered whether we have the physical space to do
some things i.e. are people willing to walk further or change buses or give up road space for other things
etc. Members suggested that was why people ought to be asked those questions.
Members expressed their continued frustration that First Bus still has a ‘monopoly’ on buses in Bristol and
were of the view that the West of England Combined Authority (WECA) needed to do more about this.
It was said that although WECA isn’t officially the Transport Authority yet, it is correct in doing this work
because apart from the recent introduction of Metrobus Bristol’s Bus Network had not changed since the
1990s. It was agreed that building the orbital routes outward would provide room for more interchanges.
And that interchanges would not work effectively until all the bus operators are working under one single
ticket system. This in his view really needed to be pushed though as quick as possible.
Other Members agreed that more interchanges and cross-boundary tickets were the way forward as well
as the need for more high frequency buses.
Some Members felt that franchising would solve many problems but that the Council had already been
talking about this for many years.

Bus Deal
Officers took Members through the relevant slides that had been published and explained that the ‘Bus Deal’ is a
partnership arrangement to deliver significant improvements to services and aims to increase bus patronage.
Some of the key points made by officers and Members were as follows:
 This project is also a means of implementing the Bus Strategy objectives and requires gaining commitments
from both the bus operator and transport authority.
 As part of the project, officers have identified where buses are delayed the most and which are the worst
performing services across the city. The Number 2 Service was identified as being the worst after officers
spent time with bus drivers to detect the frequency and length of delays and causes of those delays.
Through new technology, signals and priorities will be improved on the routes. The ‘Real Time Information’
(RTI) system will be linked into other transport systems such as traffic lights so it can be prioritised to help
the service run faster. Routes are also being looked at to ensure they are fit for purpose and more buses
will be introduced year on year. There will also be a process of cleaning the buses up with regards to the
amount pollutants they’re emitting.
 Members suggested this project sounded very similar to the previous Better Bus Deal project. However it
was said that in this case they now need to be viewed as ‘set of individual deals or packages over as
number of years’.
 A Member commented that the focus of the programme sounded very promising. It was his view that in
the past too much focus had been on infrastructure and not enough on actual passengers’ experiences.
Smart and Integrated Ticketing
Officers took the Members though the published slides which explained what’s available now, what the vison is and
what plan going forward is. They said they were learning from Transport for London (TfL) and the timescales for
implementation were around 4-6 years.


Members enquired about the Smart Ticketing project plan phasing `and asked why three out of four phases
didn’t show any timescales. Officers responded that they needed to see how phase one or two went first.

Page 10

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk






A Member enquired if the project plan was currently BCC’s aspirations or was the bus company already
signed up to this? It was said that the bus company were engaged on phase one but yes but that was still
work to be done before the phase two could begin.
A Member commented that he thought this was all excellent but requested it be progressed as fast as
possible.
Another Member said they recognised that there are many obstacles to overcome but that WECA does
have a considerable amount of funding for the regions transport.
Officers said that the road to smart ticketing had been a long and painful one. What was really needed was
a plan that all the providers signed up to. It had previously been the Oyster Card but that way of doing
things was ‘old hat’. It was also highlighted how another local authority had spent £16 million on this issue
with an operator and had ended up walking away without any results at all.

WECA (West of England Combined Authority) RTI (Real Time Information) System
Officers provided Members with a summary of the current system and how it operates. It was said that Bristol runs
the RTI system on-behalf of WECA now.
It was said that there had previously been two contractors but in January 2019 a new contractor was appointed and
the system was changed from a radio system to a sim-card one. There were some problems initially i.e. once the
signal was lost it took around an hour for it to come back online. However, since March or April it’s been
performing much better and a new system will be installed in September.
Members were keen understand and discuss why there were different contractors. Some said they were pleased
this was being done as it is very annoying when buses on route just disappeared of the screen.
 It was suggested that the period of time where the RTI hadn’t been working properly had been very
detrimental to the usage.
Officers said they’d now pin-pointed where the main issues were and had hopefully fixed them now. Officers said
they were confident that passengers would soon start to see improvements.

11.Multi-Modal Transport
The Head of Strategic City Transport said that the agenda item had been separated into two sections and confirmed
what was meant by the terms ‘multi-modal transport’ and ‘mobility stations’.
Mobility stations are about identifying ‘first/last mile solutions to connect communities to frequent public transport
services and provide integrated transport options’. Officers said they had learned a lot about these on a recent
study trip to Cologne - a city region with a similar population to the West of England.
Officers are looking at the current issues, what facilities and benefits could be on offer, whereabouts they could be
based and how they can be developed. It was said they were very keen for Bristol to make much better use of what
it already has.
Officers said there are frequent public transport services on Bristol’s corridors but that people are not always aware
of them or cannot easily access them. There is a lot of work needed to improve communication and connections
between things. It was said that mobility stations can help addresses the lack of orbital connections in the city.

Page 11

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Members were keen to understand more about what the ‘last mile delivery’ and what that could involve. Officers
said there were a range of different facilities that could be provided depending on the location and identified needs
which could include lockers that provided a place for people to collect from.
It was asked if electric bicycle hire could potentially be included. Officers said that they are asked about this point
quite often and so it will be looked into but that electric bikes can already be hired from a few different places in
the city.
Members asked when they would start to see some of this happening. Officers said that WECA had applied to the
Government’s ‘Future Mobility Zones Fund’ and had a reasonably good opportunity to be successful. Offices
highlighted Avonmouth as a potentially good opportunity, adding that there are all sorts of things there that people
don’t know about e.g. cycle paths that could be beneficial to people.
One Member recommended having bike racks on buses as they do in some other European Cities.
Members were positive about the prospect of local mobility stations. They asked about what publicity there might
be because it was thought that unfortunately it could take some time for some people to catch-up with what’s new
and available as with local car clubs for example. Officers agreed with the points being made and said that
communication about this would be key to its success and that it would be important to get the local communities
involved from the outset.
Mass Transit and Rail Up-date
The Head of Strategic City Transport delivered a short presentation on ‘Mass Transit and Rail’ to Members which
explained what is currently being worked on and the plans for moving things forward. The following points below
were highlighted to members:
A study has now been undertaken. The study brief defined four mass transit routes for investigation which were:
 Airport corridor
 East corridor
 North corridor
 A4 corridor
Officers stated the overall scheme had a clear objective of creating a step change in the mass movement of
residents and visitors across the region and to ‘address existing congestion issues and provide new capacity to
sustainably facilitate growth in Housing and Employment across the West of England’.
It was said that a mass transit scheme had the potential for ‘making positive changes to air quality and reducing
congestion in the region as well as better opportunities to move people around and thus stimulating regeneration’.
At the current time, all options were still being considered. The feasibility study indicated that there was merit in
exploring options further and that all options showed reasonable business cases but further work was required to
assess them.
Officers explained that they are moving towards developing a strategic outline business case which will take around
12 – 18 months to complete.
The Value for Money (VFM) assessments suggest there is a good case and that the work should move on to the
next stage. WECA have allocated £2-3 million for taking this to the next stage.

Page 12

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

It was said that over-ground projects were showing a better VFM ratio because they are cheaper to build. The
more funding that’s spent the more the VFM ration comes down.
The assessments still require more information on the costs of the tunnelling work.
Officers said it was important to try and consider what technology might be available in 10/15 years - not just
today.
Members commented and asked the following questions:
 When would ‘actual costs’ be available? Officers said that the feasibility studies would be undertaken in
autumn. But the Strategic Outline Business Case (SOBC) will contain a lot more details.
 Usage rates; Members would like to see projections included if/when possible and how much money
systems are likely to cost to run. The figure quoted by one Member was £4 billion and 15 years. His view
was that it’s unlikely that the Council will ever have that kind of funding.
 Members raised concerns about the 15 years it might take for this to come to fruition and said that was a
danger that ‘in 20 years’ time this could be seen as a 20th century solution’. Officers said that the DfT still
view mass transport is the way forward. Officers said that in their view it’s worth going forward and seeing
where it takes us. Adding that this sort of project isn’t currently happening anywhere else in UK but is quite
common in other parts of the EU.
 A Member said that it had taken years just to open up a few old train stations and lines and years of
funding. Also, would this just fill up all the spaces that aren’t already developed i.e. more new roads and
losing even more trees? Officers said that the objective was to connect things up.
 Another Member said that the demand figures looked impressive but the profit margins weren’t very big
and so it was questionable if it would ever attract private investment. Officers said in response that there
were different ways of funding project but yes this would need to be very innovative. The Strategic Outline
Business Case (SOBC) would be ready in the next 12-18 months.
Members thanked the officers for their time and for being so positive about the projects.

12.School Streets and Anti-Idling Report
This section was discussed in the context of Full Council previously asking the Mayor to: By spring 2020 investigate,
and implement if financially feasible, the introduction of an enforceable “anti-vehicle idling” zone outside every
school and in every park in the city.
Officers said this requires specific enforcement powers. As noted above it was said that banners and/or messages
could be confusing especially if used outside schools.
It was that it is a criminal offence to idle unless queuing in traffic but it’s difficult to enforce. The law isn’t generally
used for enforcement because people tend to switch off their engines when asked. This means it is not selffinancing.

Page 13

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Officers said they would like to see a mix of both approaches (enforcement and voluntary behaviour change) for
example they would like people to turn their engines off when queuing in traffic and that they would prefer to
invite people to be part of the solution rather than penalising them.
Officers said that the backs of buses have shown to be an effective part of campaigns in the past. But ideally it
would be best if people didn’t actually use their cars so often rather than just switch their engines off when
stationary.
Officers had as previously asked by the Commission had a discussion with Director of Public Health about this. It
was said they are keen to do some work on this especially around behaviour change initiatives.
One Member he was generally keen on the school streets project rather than just the no idling.
Officers said there was still room to try affecting behaviour changes on no idling such a posters and banners.
Members were shown some of these were generally impressed by them. Officers said these could be deployed in
areas where pollution was high, such outside the Bristol Royal Infirmary (BRI). It was said that there is a 15 minute
drop-off / waiting time outside the hospital and most drivers leave their engines running unnecessarily for the full
15 minutes.
Members asked about whether it was thought some measures would just push the problem elsewhere. Officers
said that displacement was a concern and would be considered when any trials were held.
The Commission thanked the transport officers for their time and general candour throughout the meeting.

Meeting ended at Time Not Specified
CHAIR __________________

Page 14

Bristol City Council
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission
Action Tracker
26th September 2019
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission Action Tracker 2019/2020
Agenda Title of
Item
Report/
Description

Action and Deadline

Responsible
Officer /
Member

Action taken and date completed

It was suggested that the
Local Plan should be brought
to a Scrutiny Commission
meeting at the earliest
opportunity.

Johanna Holmes

The Local Plan was added to the list of potential 2019 / 20020
scrutiny items for Members to select from when setting the scrutiny
work programme in June 2019.

21st February 2019
7.

Scrutiny Work
Programme

Page 15

As there is already a Members cross-party Local Plan Working Group
that meets monthly it was unclear what further value scrutiny could
bring. So this was not selected for the 2019/2020 scrutiny work
programme.

This has now been added to the September 26th 2019 meeting
agenda.
8.

Performance
Report - Quarter
3

BCP425 - Increase the
Johanna Holmes
number of affordable homes
(AH) delivered in Bristol:
Ensure Commission Members
have sight of more detailed
information about AH when

This link was provided to members of the Communities Scrutiny
Commission: Affordable Housing completion 2018/19 – 2020/21
sites have been plotted on GIS map which can be viewed:
http://bcc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=5a002b9202984a38aa2f9dbe2652c7a7

July 2019: Members requested more information about the

Agenda Item 5

July 2019: Members requested that Officers attend the September
Commission Meeting to discuss the outcome of the recent public
consultation process.

Agenda Title of
Item
Report/
Description

Action and Deadline

Responsible
Officer /
Member

this information when it is
published for the
Communities Scrutiny
Commission.

Action taken and date completed

numbers and progress on affordable houses in the pipeline. The
Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor said that she would
look into this that any further information would be provided to
Members as soon as it is available.

23rd July 2019

Page 16

5.

Minutes of the
Previous Meeting

8.

Scrutiny Work
Programme

Strategic
Intelligence &
Performance
Advisor
(As above)
Scrutiny Advisor
The Local Plan to be added to
the scrutiny work programme
for September.

As above: Performance Report - Quarter 3 and Affordable Housing
figures and Members request for further information:
The Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor will verbally update Members at the Scrutiny Meeting on 26/09/19.
The Local Plan has now been added to the September 26th 2019
meeting agenda.

Scrutiny Work Programme 2019 / 2020
People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

July 2019
2pm, Thursday 18th July

2pm, Thursday 24th July

Annual Business Report
Performance Report (Q4)
Transition Support for
Disabled Young People
SEND Standing Item -> SEND
Strategy

Annual Business Report
Performance Report (Q4)
Parks and Green Spaces
Strategy (possibly allotments)
Crime and Disorder - Crime
and ASB performance

Page 17

Better Lives – focus on
working age adults

Waste – recycling and reuse;
waste minimisation; clean
Streets and enforcement
(including graffiti update).

6pm, Tues 23rd July
(WECA Briefing beforehand)
Annual Business Report
Performance Report (Q4)
School Streets and No-idling

6pm, 17th July (MQT 5pm)

Public Transport
including ‘Transport Authority
and Governance’, Bus
Strategy, Bus Deal, real-time
information, and future
mobility
Multimodal Transport
(including mass transit and
rail, interchanges, ticketing)

BREXIT Preparedness Report

Performance Report (Q4)
Risk Report (Corporate)
Clean Air Plan

Work Programme – including
Scrutiny Inquiry Days and
Task and Finish Groups

August 2019
3pm - 14th August
Companies Performance

September 2019
6pm, Thurs, 26th September

4pm, Weds 18th September

Performance Report (Q1)

Annual Business Report

Sept TBC – Post Cabinet
Dispatch
Air Quality (Cabinet Report)

Agenda Item 8

Budget Scrutiny Process
Confirmation
BCC Thematic Boards
Health Sub-Committee Terms
of Reference
Temple Island - update on
proposals and disposal
arrangements

People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Performance Report (Q1)
Assets Strategy
Update on the Mayor’s
Climate Emergency Action
Plan

Performance Report (Q1)
Risk Report (TBC)
Finance Monitoring Reports

Local Plan (responses to May
2019 public consultation)

IT Transformation
Programme
- To included External
Auditor
Financial Debt / Arears across
the council
Commercialisation and
Innovation – general
overview

Bristol Harbour Review

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

Page 18

Investment in Regional
Community Bank and City Fund
– questions only
Annual Business Report

October 2019
5pm, Monday 14th October

5pm, Thursday 10th October

3pm Thurs 31st October

Performance Report (Q1)
SEND Standing Item -> SEND
OFSTED Inspection/
Improvement plan
Contextualised Safeguarding

Performance Report (Q1)
Libraries (possibly 9 Dec)

Finance Monitoring Report
IT Transformation
Programme (Standing item)

Neighbourhood Enforcement

Strengthening Families
Programme
Risk Report

Risk Report

Legal Services - Service Plan
and Draft Strategy
Commercialisation and
Innovation (Standing item)
Collection Fund
Financial Surplus/Deficit
Report
Council Tax Base Report

6pm Wed 2nd October
(MQT 5pm) – MAY BE
CANCELLED
Performance Report (Q1)

Bristol is Open
BREXIT Preparedness Report

People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

Report from Financials T&F
Group (TBC)
November 2019
2pm, Thursday 28th
November
Performance Report (Q2)
SEND Standing item ->
Strategy for Inclusion

6pm Thurs, 14th Nov
Performance Report (Q2)
Bristol Local Flood Risk
Management Strategy,
including River Avon Flood
Strategy
Cumberland Basin / Western
Harbour (pre-consultation
Briefing early summer )
Temple Meads and St Philips
Master Plan

Public Health Commissioning
Services

Page 19

Drug consumption rooms and
assisted heroin treatment
Domestic abuse services – a
Cabinet paper will be going to
set out services.

December 2019
10am, Monday 9th December

2pm Thursday 12th December 5pm Weds, 18th December

Performance Report (Q2)
Keeping Bristol Safe - new
governance arrangements
and remit. Joint session with
People Scrutiny Commission
Housing Lettings Review

Performance Report (Q2)
Finance Monitoring Reports

Performance Report Q2
Risk Report (TBC)

Standing item – FSA/ICT
Systems and Strategy Update
Information Management
Strategy
Standing item Commercialisation and
Innovation
Update from Financials T&F

Housing Company Business
Plan
Energy Company Business
Plan
Bristol Waste Company
Business Plan
City Leap

People Scrutiny
Commission

Communities Scrutiny
Commission

Growth and
Regeneration Scrutiny
Commission

Resources Scrutiny
Commission

Overview & Scrutiny
Management Board

Group
Contracts and Procurement
Budget Scrutiny TBC

January 2020
6pm Weds 23rd January 2020
Performance Report (Q2)

TBC
One City Plan – annual report
tbc
One City Plan – progress
update

February 2020

Page 20

5pm, Monday 10th February
Budget Scrutiny TBC

SEND Standing Item –
Hospital Education
Fixed Term Exclusions

March 2020
10am, Thursday 12th March
Risk Report
Performance Report (Q3)
Community strategy,
including community
partnerships / Area
Committees
Bristol Impact Fund (funding
for the voluntary sector)

Items to be Scheduled
Sports Strategy briefing
Community Safety

Council House Budgetary
Programme (TBC – likely joint

Bristol City Council’s Business
Plans 19/20

Performance criteria for
waste – possible T&F

Local Cycling and Walking
Infrastructure Plan (to be
discussed with Officers)

Page 21

Agenda Item 9
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
26 September 2019
Report of:

Director: Commercialisation + Citizens and Shareholder Liaison

Title:

Update Report on Bristol City Council Harbour Review

Officer Presenting Report: Penelope Fell
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 922 2287

Recommendation
That the Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission (GRSC) note:
1.

Progress on the development and implementation of the Council’s proposed Harbour Review.

The Report addresses the following significant issues:
1.
2.
3.
4.
•
•
•
•
5.
6.

It updates the GRSC on progress towards establishing the Harbour Review.
Provides brief background to the proposal to establish a Harbour Review.
Outlines consideration of the above by cross-party attendees at a Commercialisation and Innovation
Working Group (CIWG) Away Day held on 7 August 2019, and sets out the recommended actions
arising from that meeting.
Highlights the need to treat the Harbour as one of the City’s principal Historic Assets:
ensuring its sustainability for future generations;
securing efficiency savings and income growth;
maintaining agreed service delivery standards; and,
ensuring effective joining up across all areas of proposed City Council activity around the Harbour.
Provides detail on the proposed timeline for the Review.
In conclusion, the Report notes the next steps to be taken to establish the Harbour Review.

1 22
Page

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Report

1. SUMMARY
This Report sets out progress made towards establishing the Harbour Review.
2. BACKGROUND
The GRSC will recall discussion at their meeting on 29 November 2018 when the then Head of
Community Services reported on her plans to conduct a “Bristol City Docks Review”. The then
Head of Community Services had planned for the Review to commence early in January 2019, with
the results to go to Cabinet in June/July 2019.
However, following a full review of the documentation relating to the Review in early 2019, and
conducting initial discussions with key officers, and after holding a Workshop for BCC officers from
all relevant services on 3 July 2019, a proper understanding of the full range of issues relating to a
full Review would demand a far longer period to be applied to the Harbour Review. The Director:
Commercialisation + Citizens and Shareholder Liaison therefore determined that, in order to
achieve the implementation of an effective and robust Review of all matters relating to the BCC
Harbour, and to produce a comprehensive Strategy, at least 15 months from the end of November
2019 to the Summer of 2020 should be devoted to consideration of the relevant issues.
3. COMMERCIALISATION AND INNOVATION WORKING GROUP (CIWG) AWAY DAY - 7 AUGUST 2019
A successful cross party facilitated CIWG Away Day was held on 7 August 2019 that approved
overall Commercialisation progress made in 2018/19 and endorsed the Aims of the rolling Strategic
Plan 2019/22 and the Business Plan Objectives 2019-20. In particular, the Group endorsed the
commencement of a comprehensive Historic Asset Review Programme, commencing with Bristol
Harbour, and then Market and Docks Estate; and a Commercialisation Programme 2019-20,
including the renovation of some Harbour facilities. Members and officers who were able to
attend received the comprehensive Note of the Day, as did those elected members and officers
who were invited, but unable, to attend the Away Day.
The elected members attending wanted BCC’s commercialisation principles in 2019/22 to be:
 ambitious;
 progressive and agile, based on “ get on with it” culture change; and,
 flexible enough to accept some risk taking.
In response, BCC officers present set out the particular challenges that face BCC in establishing:
 a shared agenda with external stakeholders, so that the Council could make best use of
external funding for Council led projects; and,
 a common approach with internal Council Directorates to achieve best value from
corporate commercialisation activities instead of short-term, unplanned, one-off
approaches to commercialisation that seemed to offer the Council income growth but
that proved unprofitable, or even resulted in a deficit, in the long run.
In conclusion, participants endorsed a proposal, made by two elected members present, that the
respective BCC Scrutiny bodies should be used to make Directorates stick to the corporate
commercialisation agenda, and would help by expecting officers to do so when developing projects
for consideration. Finally, it was said BCC Scrutiny bodies should ask questions that challenged
each Directorate to demonstrate how their business cases would achieve efficiency savings, create
income growth, and maintain agreed service delivery standards.

2 23
Page

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Report

4. MANAGING AND COMMERCIALISING BCC HISTORIC ASSETS
Away Day participants were split into groups and asked for feedback on how to approach the
management and commercialisation of BCC’s historic assets, and, in more detail:
 first, how the principles endorsed for the Commercialisation Strategy 2018/21 could be
amended to address the action needed to improve the City’s historic assets; and,
 second, to discuss and confirm the actions needed as a result of the Historic Asset
Review.
Participants’ comments were:
 Access to the public realm, access to the Harbour
In summary the issues were:
 the potential benefits for BCC, stakeholders and the wider public;
 BCC was doing all it could to provide safe open access but members of the public had
personal responsibility when entering the water on their own initiative;
 the need to review Land Registry records to understand which properties controlled what
areas of land;
 where access included not being able to moor; and,
 BCC should use CPO powers to secure access to maintain Harbour walls.
ACTION – elected members present endorsed “push CPO”.


Business Rate Income
In summary the issues were whether:
 Harbour business rate income should be ‘ring fenced’ for the harbour with (invest to save)
business rate reductions; or,
 use it for other parts of the City.

ACTION – elected members present endorsed “support and promote business rates to incentivise
other parts of the City”.
5. THE HARBOUR: ONE OF BRISTOL’S PRINCIPAL HISTORIC ASSETS
To meet the long term needs of Bristol for all its citizens, and make the Harbour sustainable for the
future, BCC needs to review its management of Bristol Harbour to establish the best strategy and
operating model going forward.
Bristol Harbour has always been an important historic economic asset for the City. But today, key
features like the 250-year-old Floating Harbour have become an integral part of the City’s
increasing popularity and a significant attraction at the heart of the city. However, Bristol
Harbour’s physical infrastructure is declining. And BCC currently operate (what should be) a
premium commercial asset at a loss. So the Harbour now requires significant improvement, not
only to bring it in line with the facilities that all Harbour users and stakeholders – including boaters
- can readily find in other locations, but also to create sustainable income growth for the future.
Functioning as a commercial dock until the mid-1970s, Bristol Harbour is not only a major tourist
attraction with museums, restaurants, bars and nightclubs, but also preserves a working shipyard –
Albion Dockyard - in the Floating Harbour. And the Harbour Festival, held annually, is one of the
highlights in BCC’s internationally renowned cultural programme, and is one of the country’s
largest free festivals. Over a 4-day period the Harbour Festival attracts over 300,000 visitors and
celebrates the maritime heritage of our City, and the continuing importance of the docks and
harbour to Bristol’s economic sectors.
3 24
Page

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Report

However, significant capital investment - that cannot be generated just from BCC revenue
maintenance and repair budgets - is needed to update ageing facilities, and fund vital
improvements, both on the Bristol Harbour quayside and on the water.
The planned comprehensive Harbour Review will involve internal and external stakeholders,
including residents, boat owners, and commercial businesses both on and off the water, as well as
City Council colleagues and services. The Terms of Reference for the Harbour Review will reflect
this, in order to ensure effective joining up across all areas of proposed City Council activity around
the Harbour.
The Review will therefore include:
• setting comparable market rate fees and charges for mooring licences;
• providing effective repair and maintenance within future revenue budgets;
• increasing income growth from leisure sector activities; and,
 showing how the City, citizens and stakeholders will benefit from the growing importance of
this sector of Bristol’s economy.
6. PROPOSED HARBOUR REVIEW TIMELINE
It is expected that the Business Case with costings for the public consultation element of the
Harbour Review will be presented to the Resources Executive Director’s Meeting in early October,
and then to Cabinet on 3 December 2019. The Public Consultation programme will then launch in
December 2019, continuing until July 2020, and including task and finish groups dedicated to
specific issues. Cabinet Approval is planned for September 2020 for the outcomes of the Harbour
Review, so that a comprehensive Harbour Strategy is developed, and a new Harbour Revision
Order can be applied for and issued, with the associated updated policies and by-laws, by April
2021. It is then expected that the Bristol Harbour Strategy will be launched to run in parallel to the
50th Anniversary of the Harbour Festival in July 2021.
7. CONCLUSION
The Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission are asked to note the next steps that will be
taken to establish the Harbour Review:
1. Major Historic Asset Programme development, as appropriate, as commercialisation
development project priorities.
2. Business Case with costings for the public consultation element of the Review to Resources
EDM in October 2019 and then to Cabinet on 3 December 2019.
3. Public Consultation programme commences December 2019 and continues until July 2020.
4. Full Harbour Review outcomes, including a comprehensive Harbour Strategy, to Cabinet in
September 2020.
5. A new Harbour Revision Order, with the associated updated policies and by-laws, by April
2021.
6. Results of the Bristol Harbour Review launched to run in parallel to the 50th Anniversary of
the Harbour Festival in July 2021.

4 25
Page

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Report

8. Consultation
a)Internal
Elected members including CIWG members, BCC Head of Paid Service, BCC s151 Officer,
Resources EDM.
b)External
Not applicable
9. Public Sector Equality Duties
9a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to --

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
Appendices:
None
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers:
None

5 26
Page

Agenda Item 10
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

Growth and Regeneration
Scrutiny Commission
26th September 2019

Report of: Colin Molton, Growth and Regeneration Executive Director
Title: Quarterly Performance Progress Report (Quarter 1 2019/20)
Ward: All wards
Officer Presenting Report: Kate Cole, Strategic Intelligence & Performance Advisor
Contact Telephone Number: 0117 9037246

Recommendation
That the performance report be noted, and scrutiny members and directors discuss progress,
and measures to address performance issues are considered and implemented by relevant
services.
The significant issues in the report are:
The directorate is on track with a range of measures contained within Appendix A1 which are
designed to demonstrate our progress towards the delivery of the Corporate Strategy (2018-23).
Of the 12 measures reported this quarter:
- 7 (58%) are on or above target
- 4 (33%) are below target
- 10 (83%) are performing better than at the same time last year
- 1 (8%) has no quarterly target

Page 27

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

1. Summary
Bristol City Council’s Business Plan for April 2019 - March 2020 sets out a wide range of actions
that are contributing to the delivery of the Corporate Strategy 2018–2023, which in turn sets out
our priorities and vision for Bristol. These actions are listed under the four strategic themes of
Empowering and Caring, Fair and Inclusive, Well Connected and Wellbeing.
A number of performance measures have been identified as key measures to demonstrating
delivery, and those for Growth and Regeneration are set out in Appendix A1. All BCP performance
measures contained here are designed to demonstrate our progress towards the Corporate
Strategy (2018-2023).
2. Context
This report is designed to ensure the scrutiny commission is appraised on quarterly performance in
line with the directorate leadership team and cabinet members in the relevant directorate.
The significant issues in the report are:
The directorate is on track with a range of measures contained within Appendix A1 which are
designed to demonstrate our progress towards the delivery of the Corporate Strategy (2018-2023).
There are 12 KPI results reported this quarter:
• 7 (58%) of those with established targets are performing on or above target,
• 4 (33%) of those with established targets are performing below target,
• 10 (83%) with a direct comparison from 12 months ago have improved.
Of the remaining measures owned by Growth and Regeneration there are 14 where the data is not
yet due to be reported.
Communities Scrutiny Commission will also be receiving a performance report for a number of
measures from services now in the Growth and Regeneration directorate which are related to that
Commission’s terms of reference and these are therefore not included in this report. (See
Appendix B).
Development of Place
• Key measures across this area are performing well; where performance is below target the
factors that have contributed to this during the quarter, such as vacancies, have been
identified and performance is expected to be back on track during the year. The KPIs in this
area are designed to demonstrate that council activities needed to underpin the delivery of
new homes in the city are progressing at a good rate.
Economy of Place
• Key measures in this division are currently all performing above target and better than this
time last year. The performance report for q2 will include commentary on the summer’s
cultural programme for the city covering the busiest time of the year with Harbour Festival,
Pride and St Paul’s Carnival all taking place in July.
Management of Place
• The public transport measures are slightly below target, but this is not a cause of concern at
this point of the year.

Page 28

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

3. Policy
Performance is reported as part of quarterly governance process as soon as possible after gathering
all the necessary data.
4. Consultation
a) Internal
Performance progress has been presented to the Growth and Regeneration directorate
management team and cabinet leads prior to the production of this report.
b) External
Not applicable
5. Public Sector Equality Duties
5a)

Before making a decision, section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires that each decision-maker
considers the need to promote equality for persons with the following “protected
characteristics”: age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, sexual orientation. Each decision-maker must, therefore, have due regard to the
need to:
i) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited under
the Equality Act 2010.
ii) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular,
to the need to:
-

remove or minimise disadvantage suffered by persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic;

-

take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
that are different from the needs of people who do not share it (in relation to disabled
people, this includes, in particular, steps to take account of disabled persons'
disabilities);

-

encourage persons who share a protected characteristic to participate in public life or in
any other activity in which participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

iii) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
those who do not share it. This involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to –
- tackle prejudice; and
- promote understanding.
5b)

Not applicable

Page 29

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny Commission – Quarterly performance report

Appendices:
Appendix A1: Quarterly Performance report
Appendix B: Growth & Regeneration performance measures for Communities Scrutiny
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
Background Papers: None

Page 30

Appendix A1

Growth & Regeneration Scrutiny – Q1 2019/20 Performance Summary
ECONOMY OF PLACE

DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
Title

Well Above

Title
BCP410: Increase the number of visitors to Bristol Museums, Galleries
and Archives

Well Above

BCP415: Increase the number of tourists to the city

Target status

BCP425: Increase the number of affordable homes delivered in Bristol
DGR124a: Percentage of major residential planning applications
processed within 13 weeks
DGR124b: Percentage of non-major residential planning applications
processed within eight weeks
DGR313a: Percentage of major residential planning applications
approved
DGR313b: Percentage of non-major residential planning applications
approved

Below

DGR120: Road Safety: reduce the number of people killed or seriously
injured in road traffic incidents.

Above
Below

OVERALL SUMMARY:

Page 31

58% (7) PIs On / Above target
83% (10) PIs Better than Q1 last year

MANAGEMENT OF PLACE
Title
BCP474: Increase the number of single journeys on Park & Ride into
Bristol
BCP475: Increase the number of passenger journeys on buses

Target status
Below
Below

Target status
Above
Above
Well Above

Appendix A1

Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny - Quarter 1 (1st April - 30 June 2019) Performance Progress Report
Corp Plan KC
ref

Code

Title

+/-

2018/19
Outturn

2019/20
Target

Q1 Progress

Comparison over
last 12 months

+

260

440

41



+

93.30%

90.00%

100.00%



+

75.20%

75.00%

71.20%



+

88.00%

92.00%

94.10%



+

70.10%

68.00%

62.70%



+

100.00%

99.00%

100.00%

=

Officer Notes

Development of Place
FI1

BCP425

FI1

DGR124a

FI1

DGR124b

FI1

DGR313a

FI1

DGR313b

FI1

DGR338a

Increase the number of affordable homes
delivered in Bristol
% of major residential planning applications
processed within 13 weeks or as otherwise
agreed
% of non-major residential planning applications
processed within 8 weeks or as otherwise
agreed
Percentage of major residential planning
applications approved
Percentage of non-major residential planning
applications approved
% Building Regulation Full Plans residential apps
decided within statutory time limit

Above agreed trajectory to meet annual target.

Vacancies within the service are currently being filled so this KPI should be back on track in the
near future.

Performance has improved during Q1 so this KPI is on track to be met by year end.

Economy of Place

Page 32

Increase the number of visitors to Bristol
Museums, Galleries and Archives

W4

BCP410

W4

BCP415 Increase the number of tourists to the city

WC1

DGR120

WOP4

BCP428

Road Safety: reduce the number of people killed
or seriously injured in road traffic incidents.

Increase annual revenue generated from the
council's investment estate

+

1,323,783

1,100,000

277,987



The museums have had a busy Q1 thanks to strong interest in the Leonardo, tattoo and Japanese
prints exhibitions. The popularity of the events has led to improved secondary spend seeing retail
activity approximately 35% above expected target. Our events and engagement activity during this
period has also supported our visitor figures.

+

4,487,329

4,625,000

1,180,697



This quarter sees the start of the tourist season and we're pleased to maintain last year's level of
visits as other major cities have reported a mixed picture of tourism in the same period.

-

103

87

15



This reporting period covers the calendar months January to March 2019. There were a total of 15
KSI casualties, of which two were fatalities.



An additional £19,555 was realised during the first quarter of 2019-20; when added to the
additional income already consolidated during 2018-19 contributes to the total of £294,789. There
are no standard in-year quarterly targets for this measure as income is determined by the rent
review cycle for the investment estates which is scheduled across the whole year.

+

£275,243

£120,000

£19,555

Management of Place

WC1

BCP474

Increase the number of single journeys on Park
& Ride into Bristol

+

1,716,174

1,720,000

427,807



Figures made up of Bath Road & Portway Park & Ride and passengers boarding the m2 & 505 at the
Long Ashton Park & Ride site. Figures for the m2 & 505 have been doubled to reflect that
passengers will return to the site to collect their vehicles. Compared to the first quarter of 2018/19
passenger figures on the Portway service remain static and have increased on the Brislington &
505 service. Use of the m2 from Long Ashton has fallen compared to the last three months of
2018/19 (the m2 service did not commence operation until September 2018).

WC1

BCP475

Increase the number of passenger journeys on
buses

+

42,216,084

43,061,000

9,973,872



Passenger numbers down 5.3% when compared to the same period last year.

Progress Key
Well Above Target
Above Target
On Target
Below Target
Well Below Target

Improvement Key



Direction of travel IMPROVED compared to same period in the previous
year

=

SAME as previous same period in the previous year



Direction of travel WORSENED compared to same period in the previous
year

Page 33

Corporate Strategy - Key Commitments
Empowering & Caring
Give our children the best start in life by protecting and developing children’s centre services, being great corporate parents and protecting children from exploitation or harm.
EC1
Reduce the overall level of homelessness and rough sleeping, with no-one needing to spend a ‘second night out’.
EC2
Provide ‘help to help yourself’ and ‘help when you need it’ through a sustainable, safe and diverse system of social care and safeguarding provision, with a focus on early help and intervention.
EC3
Prioritise community development and enable people to support their community.
EC4
Fair & Inclusive
Make sure that 2,000 new homes (800 affordable) are built in Bristol each year by 2020.
FI1
Improve educational outcomes and reduce educational inequality, whilst ensuring there are enough school places to meet demand and with a transparent admissions process.
FI2
Develop a diverse economy that offers opportunity to all and makes quality work experience and apprenticeships available to every young person.
FI3
Help develop balanced communities which are inclusive and avoid negative impacts from gentrification.
FI4
Wellbeing
Embed health in all our policies to improve physical and mental health and wellbeing, reducing inequalities and the demand for acute services.
W1
Keep Bristol on course to be run entirely on clean energy by 2050 whilst improving our environment to ensure people enjoy cleaner air, cleaner streets and access to parks and green spaces.
W2
Tackle food and fuel poverty.
W3
Keep Bristol a leading cultural city, helping make culture, sport and play accessible to all.
W4
Well-Connected
Improve physical and geographical connectivity; tackling congestion and progressing towards a mass transit system.
WC1
Make progress towards being the UK’s best digitally connected city.
WC2
Reduce social and economic isolation and help connect people to people, people to jobs and people to opportunity.
WC3
Work with cultural partners to involve citizens in the ‘Bristol’ story, giving everyone in the city a stake in our long-term strategies and sense of connection.
WC4
Workplace Organisational Priorities
Redesign the council to work effectively as a smaller organisation.
WOP1
Equip our colleagues to be as productive and efficient as possible.
WOP2
Make sure we have an inclusive, high-performing, healthy and motivated workforce.
WOP3
Be responsible financial managers and explore new commercial ideas.
WOP4

Appendix B

Measures for G&R and Communities Scrunity Commissions - cross-ref'd against G&R EDM (12th Sept 2019)
G&R EDM
flag

PI Code

G&R EDM
flag

BCP307

G&R EDM
flag

BCP308

G&R EDM
flag

BCP310

G&R EDM
flag

BCP312

G&R EDM
flag

BCP314

G&R EDM
flag

BCP323

G&R EDM
flag

BCP324

G&R EDM
flag

BCP327

G&R EDM
flag

BCP333

G&R EDM
flag

BCP334

G&R EDM
flag

BCP352a

G&R EDM
flag

BCP352b

G&R EDM
flag

BCP353

G&R EDM
flag

BCP356

G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag

BCP357
BCP410

G&R EDM
flag

BCP411

G&R EDM
flag

BCP412

G&R EDM
flag

BCP412a

G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag

BCP430a

G&R EDM
flag

BCP438

G&R EDM
flag

BCP470

G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag

BCP415
BCP425
BCP428

BCP433
BCP434
BCP436

BCP471
BCP474
BCP475
BCP476

G&R EDM
flag

BCP480

G&R EDM
flag

BCP540

G&R EDM
flag

BCP541

Short title

G&R
scrutiny flag

PI Code

Short title

Increase the number of disabled people
enabled to live more independently
through home adaptations
Increase the number of people able to
access care and support through the use
of adaptive technology
Increase the number of private sector
dwellings returned into occupation
Increase % respondents who volunteer or
help out in their community at least 3
times a year (QoL)
Reduce the percentage of people who lack
the information to get involved in their
community (QoL)
Increase % of people who see friends and
family as much as they want to (QoL)
Increase the percentage of people who
feel they belong to their neighbourhood
(QoL)
Reduce the percentage of people who
have noted “mainly negative effects” from
gentrification (QoL)
Increase the percentage of residents
visiting a park or open space at least once
a week (QoL)
Reduce the percentage of the population
living in Fuel Poverty
Reduce the number of people sleeping
rough on a single night in Bristol - Annual
Count
Reduce the number of people sleeping
rough on a single night in Bristol - BCC
quarterly Count
Increase the number of households where
homelessness is prevented
Reduce the number of households who
were in Temporary Accommodation for
more than 6 months
Reduce the number of households in
temporary accommodation
Increase the number of visitors to Bristol
Museums, Galleries and Archives
Increase the percentage of people who
take part in cultural activities at least once
a month (QoL)
Increase the percentage satisfied with the
range and quality of outdoor events in
Bristol (QoL)
Increase the % satisfied (in deprived areas)
with the range and quality of outdoor
events (QoL)

G&R scrutiny
flag

PI Code

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP307

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP308

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP310

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP312

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP314

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP323

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP324

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP327

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP333

CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag
G&R scrutiny
flag

BCP410

G&R scrutiny
flag

BCP411

G&R scrutiny
flag

BCP412

G&R scrutiny
flag

BCP412a
BCP415
BCP425
BCP428
BCP430a
BCP433
BCP434
BCP436
BCP438

BCP470
BCP471
BCP474
BCP475
BCP476
BCP480

Short title
Increase the number of disabled people
enabled to live more independently
through home adaptations
Increase the number of people able to
access care and support through the use
of adaptive technology
Increase the number of private sector
dwellings returned into occupation
Increase % respondents who volunteer or
help out in their community at least 3
times a year (QoL)
Reduce the percentage of people who lack
the information to get involved in their
community (QoL)
Increase % of people who see friends and
family as much as they want to (QoL)
Increase the percentage of people who
feel they belong to their neighbourhood
(QoL)
Reduce the percentage of people who
have noted “mainly negative effects” from
gentrification (QoL)
Increase the percentage of residents
visiting a park or open space at least once
a week (QoL)

Reduce the percentage of the population
living in Fuel Poverty
CM scrutiny
flag

G&R scrutiny
flag
Increase the number of affordable homes G&R scrutiny
delivered in Bristol
flag
Increase annual revenue generated from G&R scrutiny
the council's investment estate
flag
Increase the number of new homes to
G&R scrutiny
meet the corporate target
flag
Reduce the total CO2 emissions in Bristol G&R scrutiny
City (k tonnes)
flag
Reduce the proportion of deaths
G&R scrutiny
attributed to particulate air pollution
flag
Improve the percentage of premises that G&R scrutiny
have access to Ultrafast Broadband
flag
Increase the % of people living in deprived
G&R scrutiny
areas who have access to the internet at
flag
home (QoL)
Reduce the percentage of people saying
G&R scrutiny
that traffic congestion is a problem in their
flag
area (QoL)
Improve journey time reliability during the G&R scrutiny
morning peak travel period
flag
Increase the number of single journeys on G&R scrutiny
Park & Ride into Bristol
flag
Increase the number of passenger
G&R scrutiny
journeys on buses
flag
Increase the number of people travelling G&R scrutiny
actively to work by walking and cycling
flag
Increase the % of monitoring sites that
G&R scrutiny
meet the annual air quality target for
flag
nitrogen dioxide
Reduce percentage of people who feel
that street litter is a problem in their
neighbourhood (QoL)
Increase the percentage of household
waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting
Increase the number of tourists to the city

BCP334

CM scrutiny
flag

Reduce the number of people sleeping
BCP352a rough on a single night in Bristol - Annual
Count
Reduce the number of people sleeping
BCP352b rough on a single night in Bristol - BCC
quarterly Count
Increase the number of households where
BCP353
homelessness is prevented
Reduce the number of households who
BCP356 were in Temporary Accommodation for
more than 6 months
Reduce the number of households in
BCP357
temporary accommodation

Increase the number of visitors to Bristol
Museums, Galleries and Archives
Increase the percentage of people who
take part in cultural activities at least once
a month (QoL)
Increase the percentage satisfied with the
range and quality of outdoor events in
Bristol (QoL)
Increase the % satisfied (in deprived areas)
with the range and quality of outdoor
events (QoL)
Increase the number of tourists to the city
Increase the number of affordable homes
delivered in Bristol
Increase annual revenue generated from
the council's investment estate
Increase the number of new homes to
meet the corporate target
Reduce the total CO2 emissions in Bristol
City (k tonnes)
Reduce the proportion of deaths
attributed to particulate air pollution
Improve the percentage of premises that
have access to Ultrafast Broadband
Increase the % of people living in deprived
areas who have access to the internet at
home (QoL)
Reduce the percentage of people saying
that traffic congestion is a problem in their
area (QoL)
Improve journey time reliability during the
morning peak travel period
Increase the number of single journeys on
Park & Ride into Bristol
Increase the number of passenger
journeys on buses
Increase the number of people travelling
actively to work by walking and cycling
Increase the % of monitoring sites that
meet the annual air quality target for
nitrogen dioxide

Page 34

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP540

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP541

Reduce percentage of people who feel
that street litter is a problem in their
neighbourhood (QoL)
Increase the percentage of household
waste sent for reuse, recycling and
composting

G&R EDM
flag

DGR061

G&R EDM
flag

DGR120

G&R EDM
flag

DGR124a

G&R EDM
flag

DGR124b

G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag
G&R EDM
flag

DGR313a
DGR313b
DGR338a
DGR372
DGR374a
DGR375
DGR376

Increase level of cycling across Bristol
(baseline 2008/09 = index 100)
Road Safety: reduce the number of people
killed or seriously injured in road traffic
incidents.
% of major residential planning
applications processed within 13 weeks or
as otherwise agreed
% of non-major residential planning
applications processed within 8 weeks or
as otherwise agreed
Percentage of major residential planning
applications approved
Percentage of non-major residential
planning applications approved

G&R scrutiny
flag

DGR061

G&R scrutiny
flag

DGR120

G&R scrutiny
flag

DGR124a

G&R scrutiny
flag

DGR124b

G&R scrutiny
flag
G&R scrutiny
flag

% Building Regulation Full Plans residential G&R scrutiny
flag
apps decided within statutory time limit

DGR313a
DGR313b
DGR338a

Increase level of cycling across Bristol
(baseline 2008/09 = index 100)
Road Safety: reduce the number of people
killed or seriously injured in road traffic
incidents.
% of major residential planning
applications processed within 13 weeks or
as otherwise agreed
% of non-major residential planning
applications processed within 8 weeks or
as otherwise agreed
Percentage of major residential planning
applications approved
Percentage of non-major residential
planning applications approved
% Building Regulation Full Plans residential
apps decided within statutory time limit

Maximise the rent income to housing
delivery (total debt outstanding)
Reduce average times for all relets to 12
weeks
Reduce the number of empty council
properties to 250 by 2020 (true voids)
Reduce the loss of gross rental income
through voids

DGR379

Private rented properties improved

DGR542

Reduce the residual untreated waste sent
to landfill (per household)

CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag
CM scrutiny
flag

DGR372
DGR374a
DGR375
DGR376
DGR379

CM scrutiny
DGR542
flag

Maximise the rent income to housing
delivery (total debt outstanding)
Reduce average times for all relets to 12
weeks
Reduce the number of empty council
properties to 250 by 2020 (true voids)
Reduce the loss of gross rental income
through voids
Private rented properties improved
Reduce the residual untreated waste sent
to landfill (per household)

Other measures for Communities Scrunity Commission (Sept 2019)
From People EDM / Scrutiny
People
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

People
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

People
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

People
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP253
Public
Health
BCP255
Public
Health
BCP256
Public
Health
Public
Health

Increase the number of attendances at
BCC leisure centres and swimming pools
Increase % of people living in the most
deprived areas who do enough regular
exercise each week (QoL)
Increase the % of adults in deprived areas
who play sport at least once a week (QoL)
Increase the percentage of people who do
enough regular exercise each week (QoL)

From Resources EDM / Scrutiny
Resources
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP517
RE

Resources
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

BCP518
RE

Resources
EDM flag

CM scrutiny
flag

DRE225
RE

Page 35

Increase the percentage of Corporate FOI
requests responded to within 20 working
days
Increase the percentage of stage 1 nonstatutory complaints that we respond to
within 15 days
% channel shift achieved for Citizens
Services overall

Agenda Item 11
Growth and Regeneration Scrutiny

Item 11

Meeting date: 26 September 2019
Heading: Local Plan consultation March - May 2019 summary
Ward: All
Author: Colin Chapman

Job title: Local Plan Team Manager

Ext. No: 25868

Location: City Hall

Officer presenting report: Sarah O’Driscoll / Zoe Willcox

Purpose of briefing:
To present a summary of responses received to the local plan review consultation March – May
2019.

Background
1. The Bristol Local Plan 2006 – 2026 consists of the following adopted documents:




Core Strategy (June 2011)
Site Allocations and Development Managements Policies Local Plan (July 2014)
Bristol Central Area Local Plan (March 2015)

Together with the Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan, Old Market neighbourhood
Development Plan and the Hengrove and Whitchurch Neighbourhood Development Plan, and the
Joint Waste Plan (March 2011), these documents provide the Development Plan for Bristol.
2. The Council has committed to a partial review of the existing Local Plan:
 to create a single Local Plan document
 to revise and update policies as required
Policies will be retained and incorporated into a single plan where they continue to be up to date
and relevant. To date the review has taken into account the West of England Joint Spatial Plan as
submitted to the Secretary of State in April 2018.
3. Consultation on the revision to the Local Plan has been undertaken in 2 phases:
 February – April 2018. Issues consultation.
This set out the topics that the plan would cover, indicting which policies would be
retained.
 March – May 2019.
Draft policies and Development Allocations consultation.
A full draft of proposed policies and proposed site allocations.
4. The responses are summarised in a 260 pages document (see Appendix 1). This document is
available on the Local Plan Website and can be accessed here.
Headlines from the consultation
5. Some of the most notable points arising from the consultation include:


922 responses were received in total;



203 responses related to the proposal for Stoke Lodge in Stoke Bishop to be protected as
Item 3 Page 1

Page 36

Reserved Open Space;


Over half of all responses related to the above and the following four draft allocations or topics:
o Stapleton Cricket Club (60);
o College Road, Fishponds (114)
o south west Bristol Green Belt changes (83) and;
o concerns about additional student accommodation specifically at Stoke Bishop (54);



40 representations and a petition of 1,850 signatories were received requesting stronger policy
to control outdoor advertising;



Concerns around climate emergency where raised in numerous responses. The draft
development management policy receiving most comments was CCS1 Climate change,
sustainable design and construction (77).



Also frequently raised was the view that the impacts on the various proposals on development
viability had to be demonstrated;



Comments were received regarding all the draft local plan’s various proposals for areas of
growth and regeneration either supporting the proposals, raising concerns/objections or making
detailed comments. The largest number of comments on those related to SW Bristol (83), Bristol
City Centre (42), Western Harbour (34) and Central Bedminster (29);



The 20 hectare site of the Brabazon Hanger at Filton and adjacent land was subject of
proposals by the owners (YTL Ltd and BAE Systems) for it to be allocated in the local plan for a
major arena and mixed used development. South Gloucestershire Council also proposed that
the site which adjoins its area should be allocated as the preferred site for an arena;



Detailed observations were received from statutory bodies and statutory undertakers including
Environment Agency, Natural England, Historic England, Marine Management Organisation,
Wessex Water, Bristol Water, National Grid, The Coal Authority and Sport England. All three
adjacent local authorities also made comments;

6. The policies or proposals attracting the largest number of responses are shown in Table 1 below
which lists all draft policies/proposals in order of the number of responses.
Table 1. Number or responses to Local Plan Review consultation - by highest number of responses to a
policy/proposal
Policy/proposal
GI2: Reserved Open Space proposal - Stoke Lodge
DA1 - Proposed development allocation BDA1501 College Road,
Fishponds
DS11: Development allocations – southwest Bristol
CCS2: Towards zero carbon development
DS10: Changes to the Green Belt in South Bristol
DA1 - Proposed development allocation BDA1301 Stapleton
Cricket Club
H7: Managing the development of purpose-built student
accommodation (policy)
H7: Managing the development of purpose-built student
accommodation (Stoke Bishop)
UL1: Effective and efficient use of land
H5: Self-build and community-led housing
CCS1: Climate change, sustainable design and construction
H1: Delivery of new homes
Item 3 Page 2

Page 37

Responses
203
114

Petition - signatories
1574
446

83
77
64
60

37

59
54
54
53
51
50

See DS11 above
1047

T5: Provision of infrastructure for electric and other low emission
vehicles
DS1: Bristol City Centre
UL2: Residential densities
DC3: Local character and distinctiveness (advertising issues)
DS4: Western Harbour
T1: Development and transport principles
DC1: Liveability in residential development including space
standards
H4: Housing type and mix
IDC1: Development contributions and CIL
H6: Homes in multiple occupation and other shared housing
DS8: Central Bedminster
H9: Accessible homes
DS2: Bristol Temple Quarter
DC2: Tall buildings
E1: Inclusive economic development
E2: Employment land strategy
T3: Car and cycle parking provision for residential development
CCS4: Resource efficient and low impact construction
T2: Transport schemes
CCS3: Adaptation to a changing climate
DS3: St. Philip’s Marsh
E7: New workspace within mixed-use development
GI2: Reserved Open Space (policy)
E4: Industry and Distribution Areas
DS5: Frome Gateway
H3: Making the best use of site allocations
GI2: Reserved Open Space proposals - other (maximum for any
single site – see Appendix 1 for comments on each ROS proposal)
DS12: New neighbourhood – Bath Road, Brislington
GI1: Local Green Space proposals (maximum for any single site –
see Appendix 1 for comments on each LGS proposal)
HW2: Air quality
DS6: Lawrence Hill
H8: Older peoples’ and other specialist needs housing
E3: Location of office development
HW1: Pollution control and water quality
DS13: Lockleaze
GI1: Local Green Space (policy)
DS7: Central Fishponds
DS9: Brislington
E5: Avonmouth Industrial Area and Bristol Port
HW3: Takeaways
DA1 - Proposed development allocation (maximum for any other
single site – see Appendix 1 for comments on each allocation)
E8: Digital connectivity and inclusion
GI3: Incidental Open Spaces
DC3: Local character and distinctiveness
GI4: Stapleton Allotments and Holdings – Food Growing Local
Green Space
T4: Cycle parking provision for B1 office development
DS14: Central Southmead
Item 3 Page 3

Page 38

44
42
41
40
34
34
33
32
31
30
29
28
26
26
25
24
24
24
23
23
21
21
21
20
19
18
17
16
16
16
14
14
14
14
13
13
12
12
12
12
12
11
10
10
9
9
7

1850

Shopping, services and the evening economy
H2: Preventing the loss of residential accommodation
H10: Planning for traveller sites
CCS5: Renewable energy development
E6: Protecting living conditions in Avonmouth Village

7
6
6
5
3

7. The summary of responses is available on the Council Website.
8. The comments will be taken into account by officers as they update evidence and prepare future
versions of the local plan.
Joint Spatial Plan
9. The West of England Joint Spatial Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State in April 2018
and hearings opened on 2nd July 2019. The Planning Inspectors for the Examination wrote to the
four Unitary Authorities of the West of England on 11th September 2019 raising a number of
issues of concern with the JSP link here. The four authorities are considering the technical
details carefully and the potential options and will respond to the Planning Inspectors in due
course.
10. There will now be a delay to the preparation of the Local Plan, as the Joint Spatial Plan set the
strategic cross boundary context. In taking the Local Plan policies forward officers will consider
the provision for homes, space for jobs, the living environment and the infrastructure needed to
meet the challenges of the future. This will include cross boundary work to address the housing
crisis, the need for jobs and affordable housing, and to respond to the climate emergency.

Appendices:
Appendix 1 - Summary of responses – as link only

Item 3 Page 4

Page 39

